

User Manual

Single-Phase Microinverter

S450S/S800S/S1000S/S1600S



All Rights Reserved

All Rights Reserved

No part of this document can be reproduced in any form or by any means without the prior written permission of Sungrow Power Supply Co., Ltd (hereinafter "SUNGROW").

Trademarks

SUNGROW and other SUNGROW trademarks used in this manual are owned by SUNGROW.

All other trademarks or registered trademarks mentioned in this manual are owned by their respective owners.

Software Licenses

- It is prohibited to use data contained in firmware or software developed by SUNGROW, in part or in full, for commercial purposes by any means.
- It is prohibited to perform reverse engineering, cracking, or any other operations that compromise the original program design of the software developed by SUNGROW.

About This Manual

The manual mainly contains the product information, as well as guidelines for installation, operation, and maintenance. The manual does not include complete information about the photovoltaic (PV) system. Readers can get additional information at **www.sungrowpower. com** or on the webpage of the respective component manufacturer.

Validity

This manual is valid for the following microinverters:

- S450S
- S800S
- S1000S
- \$1600S

It will be referred to as "microinverter" hereinafter unless otherwise specified.

Target Group

This manual is intended for professional technicians who are responsible for installation, operation, and maintenance of microinverters, and users who need to check the parameters of microinverters.

The microinverter must only be installed by professional technicians. The professional technician is required to meet the following requirements:

- Know electronic, electrical wiring and mechanical expertise, and be familiar with electrical and mechanical schematics.
- Have received professional training related to the installation and commissioning of electrical equipment.
- Be able to quickly respond to hazards or emergencies that occur during installation and commissioning.
- Be familiar with local standards and relevant safety regulations of electrical systems.
- Read this manual thoroughly and understand the safety instructions related to operations.

How to Use This Manual

Please read this manual carefully before using the product and keep it properly at a place for easy access.

All contents, pictures, marks, and symbols in this manual are owned by SUNGROW. No part of this document may be reprinted by the non-internal staff of SUNGROW without written authorization.

Contents of this manual may be periodically updated or revised, and the actual product purchased shall prevail. Users can obtain the latest manual from **support.sungrowpower.com** or sales channels.

Security Declaration

For details on the product's network security vulnerability response process and vulnerability disclosure, please visit the following website: https://en.sungrowpower.com/security-vulner-ability-management.

For more information on network security, please refer to the user manual of the communication module or the Data Logger that comes with the product.

Symbols

This manual contains important safety instructions, which are highlighted with the following symbols, to ensure personal and property safety during usage, or to help optimize the product performance in an efficient way.

Please carefully understand the meaning of these warning symbols to better use the manual.

DANGER

Indicates high-risk potential hazards that, if not avoided, may lead to death or serious injury.

WARNING

Indicates moderate-risk potential hazards that, if not avoided, may lead to death or serious injury.

ACAUTION

Indicates low-risk potential hazards that, if not avoided, may lead to minor or moderate injury.

NOTICE

Indicates potential risks that, if not avoided, may lead to device malfunctions or financial losses.



"NOTE" indicates additional information, emphasized contents or tips that may be helpful, e.g., to help you solve problems or save time.

Privacy Policy

The Microinverter device itself does not collect any personal data or telemetry data. It may collect information such as power generation data and product operation data for calculation purposes. You can check and manage such information on the iSolarCloud App. The privacy policy can be found on the login screen of the App.



Contents

Al At	Rights ReservedI				
Pr	Privacy PolicyIV				
1	Safety Instructions1				
2	Product Description				
	2.1 Microinverter-based Grid-connected PV System				
	2.2 Microinverter4				
	2.3 Application Scenarios				
	2.3.1 Rooftop PV System5				
3	Hardware Design				
	3.1 Product Models				
	3.2 S450S				
	3.3 S800S/S1000S10				
	3.4 S1600S				
	3.5 Symbols on Product11				
4	Installation Instructions				
	4.1 Preparation Before Installation13				
	4.1.1 Safety During Mounting13				
	4.1.2 Installation Environment Requirements13				
	4.1.3 Installation Space Requirements14				
	4.1.4 PV Module Requirements15				
	4.1.5 Installation Tools15				
	4.2 System Wiring Diagram16				
	4.3 Mounting and Wiring17				
	4.3.1 Mounting the Microinverter17				
	4.3.2 Attach AC Male Connector19				
	4.3.3 Wiring Steps				
	4.4 iHomeManager Installation and Wiring (Optional)24				
	4.4.1 Installation Methods				
	4.4.1.1 Mounted on a Wall24				
	4.4.1.2 Mounted on a Guide Rail27				

	4.4.2 Antenna Installation	
	4.4.3 Power Supply and CT Connection	29
5	Commissioning	
	5.1 Commissioning Procedure	
	5.2 Operation Parameter Setting on iSolarCloud App	
	5.2.1 Background Information	
	5.2.2 Device Configuration (Option 1)	
	5.2.3 Device Configuration (Option 2)	46
	5.2.4 Power Flow (with iHomeManager)	46
6	Remote Monitoring	
	6.1 Firmware Update	
	6.2 Viewing Layout	
	6.3 Checking Microinverter Status	55
	6.4 Resetting iSolarCloud Account Password	
	6.5 Resetting Microinverter Password	57
	6.6 Turning on Microinverter Hotspot	59
7	Maintenance	60
7	Maintenance 7.1 Maintenance Notices	60 60
7	Maintenance 7.1 Maintenance Notices 7.2 Routine Maintenance	60 60 61
7	Maintenance 7.1 Maintenance Notices 7.2 Routine Maintenance 7.3 Microinverter Removal and Replacement	60 60 61 61
7	 Maintenance 7.1 Maintenance Notices 7.2 Routine Maintenance 7.3 Microinverter Removal and Replacement 7.3.1 Microinverter Removal and Replacement 	60 60 61 61 61
7	Maintenance 7.1 Maintenance Notices 7.2 Routine Maintenance 7.3 Microinverter Removal and Replacement 7.3.1 Microinverter Removal and Replacement 7.3.2 Microinverter Replacement on iSolarCloud App	60 61 61 61 61
7	Maintenance 7.1 Maintenance Notices 7.2 Routine Maintenance 7.3 Microinverter Removal and Replacement 7.3.1 Microinverter Removal and Replacement 7.3.2 Microinverter Replacement on iSolarCloud App 7.4 System Decommissioning	60 61 61 61 61 62 64
7	 Maintenance 7.1 Maintenance Notices 7.2 Routine Maintenance 7.3 Microinverter Removal and Replacement 7.3.1 Microinverter Removal and Replacement 7.3.2 Microinverter Replacement on iSolarCloud App 7.4 System Decommissioning 7.4.1 Disconnecting the Microinverter 	60 61 61 61 62 64 64
7	Maintenance 7.1 Maintenance Notices 7.2 Routine Maintenance 7.3 Microinverter Removal and Replacement 7.3.1 Microinverter Removal and Replacement 7.3.2 Microinverter Replacement on iSolarCloud App 7.4 System Decommissioning 7.4.1 Disconnecting the Microinverter 7.4.2 Dismantling the Microinverter	60 61 61 61 62 64 64 64
7	Maintenance 7.1 Maintenance Notices 7.2 Routine Maintenance 7.3 Microinverter Removal and Replacement 7.3.1 Microinverter Removal and Replacement 7.3.2 Microinverter Replacement on iSolarCloud App 7.4 System Decommissioning 7.4.1 Disconnecting the Microinverter 7.4.2 Dismantling the Microinverter 7.4.3 Disposal of Microinverter	60 61 61 61 61 62 64 64 64 64
8	 Maintenance 7.1 Maintenance Notices 7.2 Routine Maintenance 7.3 Microinverter Removal and Replacement 7.3.1 Microinverter Removal and Replacement 7.3.2 Microinverter Replacement on iSolarCloud App 7.4 System Decommissioning 7.4.1 Disconnecting the Microinverter 7.4.2 Dismantling the Microinverter 7.4.3 Disposal of Microinverter 	60 61 61 61 62 64 64 64 64 64 64
8	 Maintenance 7.1 Maintenance Notices 7.2 Routine Maintenance 7.3 Microinverter Removal and Replacement 7.3.1 Microinverter Removal and Replacement 7.3.2 Microinverter Replacement on iSolarCloud App 7.4 System Decommissioning 7.4.1 Disconnecting the Microinverter 7.4.2 Dismantling the Microinverter 7.4.3 Disposal of Microinverter 8.1 Indicator Status and Troubleshooting 	60 61 61 61 62 64 64 64 64 64 66
7 8 9	Maintenance 7.1 Maintenance Notices 7.2 Routine Maintenance 7.3 Microinverter Removal and Replacement 7.3.1 Microinverter Removal and Replacement 7.3.2 Microinverter Replacement on iSolarCloud App 7.4 System Decommissioning 7.4.1 Disconnecting the Microinverter 7.4.2 Dismantling the Microinverter 7.4.3 Disposal of Microinverter 8.1 Indicator Status and Troubleshooting	60 61 61 61 62 64 64 64 64 64 66 66 66
7 8 9	Maintenance 7.1 Maintenance Notices 7.2 Routine Maintenance 7.3 Microinverter Removal and Replacement 7.3.1 Microinverter Removal and Replacement 7.3.2 Microinverter Replacement on iSolarCloud App 7.4 System Decommissioning 7.4.1 Disconnecting the Microinverter 7.4.2 Dismantling the Microinverter 7.4.3 Disposal of Microinverter 8.1 Indicator Status and Troubleshooting 9.1 Technical Data	
7 8 9	Maintenance 7.1 Maintenance Notices 7.2 Routine Maintenance 7.3 Microinverter Removal and Replacement 7.3.1 Microinverter Removal and Replacement 7.3.2 Microinverter Replacement on iSolarCloud App 7.4 System Decommissioning 7.4.1 Disconnecting the Microinverter 7.4.2 Dismantling the Microinverter 7.4.3 Disposal of Microinverter 7.4.3 Disposal of Microinverter 7.4.3 Disposal of Microinverter 9.1 Indicator Status and Troubleshooting 9.2 Quality Assurance	60 61 61 61 62 64 64 64 64 64 66 66 72 72 74

1 Safety Instructions

When installing, commissioning, operating, and maintaining the product, strictly observe the labels on the product and the safety requirements in the manual. Incorrect operation or work may cause:

- Injury or death to the operator or a third party.
- Damage to the product and other properties.

A WARNING

- Do not perform any operation on the product (including but not limited to, handling, installing, powering on, or maintaining the product, performing electrical connection, and working at heights) in harsh weather conditions, such as thunder and lightning, rain, snow, and Level 6 or stronger winds. SUNGROW shall not be held liable for any damage to the device due to force majeure, such as earthquakes, floods, volcanic eruptions, mudslides, lightning strikes, fires, wars, armed conflicts, typhoons, hurricanes, tornadoes, and other extreme weathers.
- In case of fire, evacuate from the building or product area and call the fire alarm.
 Re-entry into the burning area is strictly prohibited under any circumstances.
- To protect its internal components, during manufacture, after the product enclosure is closed, sealant will be injected into the product. Do not disassemble the product when using it. Forcible disassembly may damage the product, and the losses caused therefrom will not be covered by warranty.

NOTICE

- Tighten the screws with the specified torque using tools when fastening the product and terminals. Otherwise, the product may be damaged. And the damage caused is not covered by the warranty.
- Learn how to use tools correctly before using them to avoid hurting people or damaging the device.
- Maintain the device with sufficient knowledge of this manual and use proper tools.

- The safety instructions in this manual are only supplements and cannot cover all the precautions that should be followed. Perform operations considering actual onsite conditions.
- SUNGROW shall not be held liable for any damage caused by violation of general safety operation requirements, general safety standards, or any safety instruction in this manual.
- When installing, operating, and maintaining the product, comply with local laws and regulations. The safety precautions in this manual are only supplements to local laws and regulations.
- During the product transport, installation, wiring, maintenance, etc., the materials and tools prepared by users must meet the requirements of applicable local laws and regulations, safety standards, and other specifications. SUNGROW shall not be held liable for any damage to the product caused by the adoption of materials and tools that fail to meet the above-mentioned requirements.
- Operations on the product, including but not limited to, handling, installing, wiring, powering on, maintenance, and use of the product, must not be performed by unqualified personnel. SUNGROW shall not be held liable for any damage to the product resulting from operations done by unqualified personnel.
- Where the transport of the product is arranged by users, SUNGROW shall not be held liable for any damage to the product that is caused by users themselves or the third-party transport service providers designated by the users.
- SUNGROW shall not be held liable for any damage to the product caused by the negligence, intent, fault, improper operation, and other behaviors of users or third-party organizations.
- SUNGROW shall not be held liable for any damage to the product arising from reasons unrelated to SUNGROW.

2 Product Description

2.1 Microinverter-based Grid-connected PV System

System Introduction

The microinverter-based grid-connected PV system is mainly composed of the PV modules, grid-connected PV microinverter ("microinverter"), communication and data acquisition device (optional), monitoring platform, and power grid. The system structure is shown below. As an integral part of the PV power system, the microinverter converts the DC power generated from the PV modules into the grid-compatible AC power and feeds it to the grid.



figure 2-1 Microinverter-based Grid-connected PV System

Microinverter

The microinverter is a type of solar inverter that can convert the DC power generated from PV modules into the grid-compatible AC power. Compared with central and string inverters, the microinverter has the advantages of high production and great safety performance and is now widely applied in residential and distributed PV systems.

With its built-in Wi-Fi function, the microinverter can access the Internet through a wireless home router and then upload the data generated during its operation to iSolarCloud. Users can log in to the iSolarCloud monitoring platform or iSolarCloud App to check the cloud data.

iSolarCloud Monitoring Platform

The iSolarCloud monitoring platform is a Web-based monitoring and management software. The platform allows users to view detailed production and performance data of the microinverter. It also enables users to manage and maintain the device remotely and remove

SUNGROW

some possible faults and alarms in the earliest stage, thus ensuring the device's stable operation. For more information, please refer to the user manual for the iSolarCloud monitoring platform.

iSolarCloud App

The iSolarCloud App is a mobile application designed for new energy power plant management. It can be used on Android and iOS devices. Users can view the plant's running data on the App. It also provides functions such as quick access to the plant, remote parameter setting, quick fault location and notification, and yield and revenue analyzing. The App enables more efficient management since it is not dependent on PC. For more information, please refer to the user manual for the iSolarCloud App.

2.2 Microinverter

Types of Microinverters

Based on the number of PV modules that can be connected, the microinverters are divided into three types: "1-in-1", "2-in-1", and "4-in-1". Only one PV module can be connected to an "1-in-1" microinverter, while two to a "2-in-1" microinverter and four to a "4-in-1" microinverter.



figure 2-2 Types of Microinverters

Features

- High power generation efficiency: In the microinverter-based grid-connected PV system, the microinverter guarantees that the PV modules all work at their optimal performance, through independent MPPT control for each module. Since the modules each has an independent MPPT, their power generation performance will not be affected by each other. That is, the decrease in the power generation of a single module, due to shading, orientation, or other factors, will not affect the power generation efficiency of other modules in the system.
- Great safety performance: As the microinverter has a relatively low DC voltage rating, only tens of volts, the potential fire risk caused by high-voltage DC arcs is eliminated and the safety is further guaranteed.
- Smarter O&M: The microinverter supports module-level operation and maintenance. Users can locate every one of the PV modules precisely and perform diagnosis of their operating status, which makes O&M easier and smarter.

2.3 Application Scenarios

Given its high power generation efficiency and great safety performance, the microinverter has been widely applied in residential PV systems.

WARNING

The S450S,S800S,S1000S and S1600S are single-phase microinverters. Do not use them in three-phase systems.

2.3.1 Rooftop PV System

Just like the balcony PV systems, users can use microinverters to increase the yield of rooftop PV systems also. In this scenario, users can use the same type of microinverters, or a mix of different types of microinverters to satisfy the demand for different power ratings.



figure 2-3 Networking Diagram of Rooftop PV System

Wi-Fi Extender (Optional)

For rooftop PV systems requiring higher communication quality, in case the microinverter's Wi-Fi functionality cannot satisfy the requirements for system data communication, a Wi-Fi extender (optional) should be added at a proper position between the microinverter and the router.



The user may stand at the position of the router, log in via local access to the microinverter on the iSolarCloud App, and check the router's Wi-Fi signal strength on the network settings screen. After the Wi-Fi signal has stabilized, see if an extender is needed.

	XXX 5G-A20231017004	Server Connection	< BACK	SYNCHRONIZE NEW	DEVICE
		Status	Please select y	our home networ	k
Shut Down			Please select your h	ome network and enter th	ne
			password to connec	t.	10000
 Total Power 				- 🔗	
0 W 0					
				© OrayBox-2	4G-2FE0
Total Yield			List of Available W	/LAN	5
0 kWh			OrayBox-2.4G-2	FEO 🥝	() ()
1.5	-	//	SG-A252081075	7	((;-
2		1	OrayBox-2.4G-C	8D4	((î;-
			xika-zhuanyong		((;-
			sungrow		((r=
			ZTE_HY004		((;-=
			Sungrow-Guest		() ()
			DIRECT-VGTONG	ZHENNING-L1msPE	((i-
			SG-A253276034	9	Ŷ
•			PERC2023		(Fill
Home	Running data	More	SG-A253276033	9	Ŷ

Check the signal strength of the router's Wi-Fi in the network list. If the router's Wi-Fi network cannot be detected or the number of signal bars is ≤2, it is suggested to take the below actions:

- 1 Move the router to a position closer to the microinverter, until the strength of the router's Wi-Fi reads > 2 bars. Then, the microinverter can engage in communication normally.
- 2 Add an Wi-Fi extender in the middle between the router and the microinverter, and ensure the signal strength at the position of the extender reads > 2 bars. Then, the microinverter can engage in communication normally.

 Read the manuals for the router and Wi-Fi extender before use. Ensure the number of devices connected is less than the limit specified by the router or Wi-Fi extender. Otherwise, the device may not be able to access the network.

The Wi-Fi extender should be prepared by the user separately. Users may use the recommended Wi-Fi extender products TP-LINK RE330 (AC1200, EU standard), Fritz 600, or choose an extender based on their actual needs.

6

A

•

It is recommended to use the microinverter in single-/two-phase grid-connected systems. The compatible grid voltage range is: 154–277 V.



3 Hardware Design

3.1 Product Models

Product Models

- S450S, 1-in-1
- S800S, 2-in-1
- S1000S, 2-in-1
- S1600S, 4-in-1



figure 3-1 Product Model Definition

No.	Definition	Description
1	Brand and model	S: SUNGROW
2	Power rating	1600: The product has a rated power of 1600W
3	Single-phase inverter	S: Single-phase

3.2 S450S

External Design

Dimensions



figure 3-2 External Design



figure 3-3 Dimensions

3.3 S800S/S1000S

External Design



figure 3-4 External Design





figure 3-5 Dimensions

3.4 S1600S

External Design



figure 3-6 External Design





3.5 Symbols on Product

Symbol	Explanation
X	Do not dispose of the inverter together with household waste.
	Read the user manual before maintenance!
"	CE mark of conformity.
	EU/EEA Importer.
\wedge	Disconnect the inverter from all the external power sources before
	maintenance!

Symbol	Explanation
TÜVRheinland CERTIFIED	TÜV mark of conformity.
	Burn danger due to the hot surface that may exceed 60°C.
	Danger to life due to high voltages!
<u>_</u>	Only qualified personnel can open and service the inverter.
	Do not touch live parts for 10 minutes after disconnection from the
	power sources.
Abart så Refereterende	UTE C15-712-1 Warning label for installation.
A CONTRACTOR OF	UTE C15-712-1 Warning label for installation.
\bigcirc	RoHS labeling
	The product complies with the requirements of the applicable EU
\bigcirc	directives.

* The table shown here is for reference only. The actual product received may differ.

* Users may also attach other warning signs as per the requirements of the local standards or installation specifications.

4 Installation Instructions

4.1 Preparation Before Installation

4.1.1 Safety During Mounting

DANGER

Make sure there is no electrical connection before installation. Before drilling, avoid the water and electricity wiring in the wall.

A WARNING

For specific requirements for the installation environment, see "4.1.2 Installation Environment Requirements". In case the environment where the product is installed does not meet the requirements, SUNGROW shall not be held liable for any property damage arising therefrom.

ACAUTION

Improper handling may cause personal injury!

- When moving the product, be aware of its weight and keep the balance to prevent it from tilting or falling.
- Wear proper protective equipment before performing operations on the product.
- The bottom terminals and interfaces of the product cannot directly contact the ground or other supports. The product cannot be directly placed on the ground.

NOTICE

During installation, ensure that no device in the system causes it hard for the AC circuit breaker to act or hinders maintenance personnel from operating. If drilling is required during installation:

- Wear goggles and protective gloves when drilling holes.
- Make sure to avoid the water and electricity wiring in the wall before drilling.
- Protect the product from shavings and dust.

4.1.2 Installation Environment Requirements

• If the microinverter is installed in a place with lush vegetation, weed on a regular basis. In addition, the ground beneath the microinverter needs to undergo certain treatment, such as laying cement or gravel, etc. (an area of 3m×2.5m is recommended).

SUNGROW

- Do not install the microinverter in an environment with flammables, explosives, or smoke.
- Do not install the microinverter in places prone to water leak, e.g., under the air-conditioner vent, the air vent, or the cable outlet window of the machine room, so as to prevent device damage or short circuit caused by intrusion of water.
- Do no install the microinverter in a place with corrosives such as corrosive gas and organic solvent, etc.
- When the microinverter is running, its surface may carry high voltages or get very hot. Do not touch it; otherwise, it may lead to burns or electric shocks.
- Do not install the microinverter in a place that is easy to reach for people.
- Good heat dissipation is very important to the microinverter. Please install the microinverter in a ventilated environment.
- Please consult SUNGROW before installing microinverters outdoors in areas prone to salt damage, which mainly are coastal areas within 500 meters of the coast. The sedimentation amount of salt spray is correlated to the characteristics of the seawater, sea winds, precipitation, air humidity, topography, and forest coverage in the adjacent sea areas, and there are substantial differences between different coastal areas.
- Do not install the microinverter in an environment contaminated with chemicals such as halogen and sulfide.
- Do not install the microinverter in an environment with vibration and strong electromagnetic field. Strong-magnetic-field environments refer to places where magnetic field strength measures over 30 A/m.
- The average temperature approximately 20 cm around the microinverter should be taken as its operating temperature. The temperature and humidity should meet the requirements below:



4.1.3 Installation Space Requirements

Make sure there is sufficient space at the heat sink of the microinverter for heat dissipation. The space requirements for installing a single microinverter are shown in the figure below.



- To install the microinverter on the rooftop, make sure it is at least 20 mm higher than the rooftop surface.
- To install the microinverter on the wall, make sure it is at least 20 mm away from the wall surface.
- Avoid placing the device in direct sunlight. It is recommended to install it under the PV module.

4.1.4 PV Module Requirements

	S450S	S800S	S1000S	S1600S
Recommended			275\\/	
PV module	375W – 570W		37500 - 375	375W – 570W
power range				
Max. PV input		co) /		
voltage		60V		
Max. PV input	404 * 4	404 * 0)	400 * 4
current	16A " 1	16A * 2	2	16A * 4

4.1.5 Installation Tools

Installation tools to be used include but are not limited to those listed below. If necessary, use other auxiliary tools on site.



SUNGROW



4.2 System Wiring Diagram

This section gives an introduction to the wiring diagram of the rooftop PV system and the use of the product accessories, with the S1600S microinverter as an example.



figure 4-1 Product Accessories for Rooftop PV System

|--|

No.	Definition	Model	Description
1	Microinverter	S450S/S800S/ S1000S/S1600S	Included in the scope of de- livery as standard equipment.
2	Sealing cap for T type connector	MC-EC01	Users place separate or- ders. Used to seal off the unused port on the T-type connector.
3	AC cable with T type connector_25	MEC-2.8T01	Users place separate or- ders. Used to connect two microinverters.
4	AC extension ca- ble_25	MEC-2.8AE01	Optional. Used when the distance between two mi- croinverters exceeds 2.8m.
5	AC connector_ male	MC-M01	Users place separate or- ders. Used to connect the microinverter to the power distribution box.

SUNGROW

No.	Definition	Model	Description
			Users place separate or-
			ders. Used to disconnect
6	AC connector un-		two T-type AC trunk cables,
0	lock tool		or disconnect the T-type
			AC trunk cable from the
			microinverter.
7	M8 fixing screw	Мо	Prepared by users. Used to
/		IVIO	fix the microinverter.
		Recommended	Prepared by users. Used
	Grounding cable	cross-section of the	for external grounding of
		cable:2.5 mm ²	Microinverter.
8	Grounding screw		Included in the scope of de-
		N44	livery. Used for external
		1714	grounding of the
			microinverter.

4.3 Mounting and Wiring

4.3.1 Mounting the Microinverter

- Do not bump, squeeze, or bend its connectors or Wi-Fi antenna when handling the microinverter. Deformation or damage may impair the device's performance or normal operation.
- Do not lift the cable by hand when handling the device. The S450S, S800S and S1000S microinverters do not have handles. You may move the device by gripping the groove on its back.



figure 4-2 Handling Notice

Step 1 Tear off the QR code label on the device enclosure. Two identical QR code labels are provided on the enclosure. Take down one of them and stick it to the appointed location of the Quick Installation Guide. It is used for device operation parameter configuration later.



Step 2 Fit the fixing nuts. Fix the nuts into the bracket, as shown in the figure. The distance between the two nuts should be approximately 160 mm. The nut and the tool used to fix the nut should be prepared by users separately.





Step 3 Mount the microinverter. Fix the microinverter to the bracket with M8 screws at a torque of 9.0 N.m, as shown in the figure below.





Washers should be added to the M8 screws by the user separately. Washers with an inner diameter of 8.5 mm and a thickness of 2.5 mm are recommended; while the outer diameter of the washer must be greater than 24 mm.

NOTICE

- Do not mount the microinverter on the edge of the bracket.
- It is recommended that the inverter fixing screws be installed around the roof frame fixing hook. This ensures greater support and prevents the fixing profile from bending due to the weight of the microinverter.



- - End

4.3.2 Attach AC Male Connector

In the rooftop PV system, to complete the AC wiring, you need to attach the AC male connector to the AC cable of the power distribution box, so that the cable can be connected to the T-type AC trunk cable of the microinverter.

Step 1 Pass the cable. Unscrew the waterproof cap of the AC male connector, and insert the cable into the connector.



Step 2 Strip the cable. Strip the protection layer and insulation layer by a proper length, as specified in the figure below.



Step 3 Crimp the terminals. Crimp the cold-pressed terminals onto the wires using a crimping tool.



Step 4 Wiring. Insert the L, N, and PE wires into the corresponding holes on the AC male connector, as shown in the figure below.



WARNING

Observe the marks on the terminals when making cables and ensure the polarity is correct. Otherwise, after connecting to the power distribution box, the microinverter ar may not operate properly, the house's circuit may trip, and it may even result in personal injuries.

Step 5 Assemble the AC male connector. Push the sealing ring and waterproof cap into the connector housing, and tighten the waterproof cap.



- - End

4.3.3 Wiring Steps

- It is recommended to make a protective ground connection. Lack of protective grounding or unreliable grounding may lead to personal injuries.
- Ensure the PV cables are connected with correct polarity during DC wiring. Otherwise, the microinverter may not operate properly.
- The total length of the microinverter PV-side DC cable and module cable must be < 3 m.
- When connecting the DC connectors, make sure the order of the connectors corresponds properly to the actual positions of PV modules at the site, to facilitate the later setup of the physical layout of the plant.
- If not all of the DC connectors on the microinverter are connected to PV modules, use IP67 waterproof plugs to close off the unused connectors. The waterproof plugs should be prepared by the user.
- If the PV module is located too far away from the microinverter, a DC extension cable is needed. The user needs to make the extension cable first.
- PV modules cannot be connected in series.
- **Step 1** Connect the external grounding cable. Secure the grounding cable with M4 screws at a torque of 1.5 N.m, as shown in the figure below.





Step 2 Connect the DC connectors. Attach the DC connectors of the microinverter to those of the PV modules, as shown in the figure below. Make sure the polarity is correct.



Step 3 Connect the AC connector. Connect the AC connector of the microinverter to the AC trunk cable, as shown in the figure below. Make sure the connection is secure.



Step 4 (Optional) Connect the extension cable. An extension cable is required if the distance exceeds 2.8m. Connect the T-type AC trunk cable to the other end of the extension cable, as shown in the figure below. Make sure the connection is secure.



Step 5 Connect the AC male connector. For instructions on how to attach the AC male connector to the cable, see "4.3.2 Attach AC Male Connector". Connect the AC male connector to the other side of the T-type AC trunk cable, as shown in the figure below. Make sure the connection is secure.



Step 6 Seal off the T-type connector. If no cable is connected to the port on the other side of the T-type connector, seal it off with the sealing cap, as shown in the figure below.





Store the accessories properly after installation for use in future maintenance.

After installation, sort and dispose of the packaging materials accordingly.

- - End



4.4 iHomeManager Installation and Wiring (Optional)

If the iHomeManager is selected for the system, follow the instructions below to install and wire it.

For detailed information about the iHomeManager, please refer to the user manual. You can access the manual by scanning the QR code below or by visiting https://support.sungrow-power.com.



4.4.1 Installation Methods

The iHomeManager must be installed in a power distribution box that has an SPD inside. It can be mounted on a wall or a guide rail, based on the user's needs.

ACAUTION

Be sure to avoid the water pipes and electricity wires in the wall before drilling.

4.4.1.1 Mounted on a Wall

The iHomeManager is mounted on a wall using the mounting holes.

The wall should be flat and solid.



The operators should wear safety goggles and dust masks, to prevent dust from getting into their eyes or mouths.

The iHomeManager can be mounted on a concrete or metal wall, based on the actual situation at the site.



figure 4-3 Mounting Holes

- Step 1 Select an appropriate installation position.
- **Step 2** Measure and determine the positions of the two mounting holes using a tape measure. The distance between them is 56mm. Then, use a marker to mark the hole positions for drilling on the wall.



Step 3 Drill holes at the marked positions using a hammer drill.

- Hole diameter on a metal wall: 5mm;
- Hole diameter on a concrete wall: 6mm;



Step 4 Fit all the expansion sleeves into the holes using a rubber mallet.





Skip this step if the device is mounted on a metal wall.

Step 5 Fix the expansion bolts or fasteners into the wall, approximately 5mm higher than the wall surface. Then, hang the iHomeManager to the bolts on the concrete or metal wall by the mounting holes on its back.



Step 6 Gently shake the iHomeManager to make sure the installation is secure.

- - End

4.4.1.2 Mounted on a Guide Rail

The iHomeManager has clips on the back, which are used to attach it to the guide rail.

- Step 1 Mount the guide rail in a proper position and fix it properly.
- **Step 2** Insert the tip of a Phillips screwdriver into the opening on the bottom clips of iHomeManager, then slightly drag downward to pull out the clips.







Step 4 Push the bottom clips upward. Make sure the iHomeManager firmly fits on the guide rail.



Step 5 Install the end brackets on the guide rail at both sides of the iHomeManager to restrict it in a fixed position.



Step 6 Gently shake the iHomeManager to make sure the installation is secure.

- - End

i

4.4.2 Antenna Installation

If the iHomeManager is installed in a metal enclosure or on a metal wall, put the antenna suction base outside of the enclosure or wall, to avoid impacts on signal transmission.

An external antenna is used by default. If no external antenna is connected, change the antenna settings on the iSolarCloud App. For details, see **Select Antenna** in .

Requirements

• You have fixed the suction base in a position outside the metal enclosure or the metal wall.
• You have reserved an opening for the antenna (hole diameter: 20mm).

Step 1 Lead the nut end of the antenna cable to the iHomeManager.

Step 2 Rotate the nut clockwise to tighten it onto the WLAN antenna connector on the iHomeManager.



- - End

4.4.3 Power Supply and CT Connection



Step 1 Use wire strippers to strip off the protective layer of the AC cable by approximately 80mm– 90mm, and the insulation layer by 12mm. It is suggested to crimp cold-pressed terminals on the cable wires.



Step 2 Connect one end of the AC cable to the iHomeManager, with its wires connected to L and N respectively.

Step 3 Connect the other end of the AC cable to the corresponding position on the household circuit breaker.



Step 4 Connect the CT wires to the GRID.CT terminal, and clamp the CT to the AC cable with the arrow pointing in the direction of the load.



The iHomeManager comes with three CTs. Connect only one CT to the microinverter.

- - End

Ħ

5 Commissioning

5.1 Commissioning Procedure

Inspection Before Powering on

Perform inspections as follows before turning on the microinverter for the first time, and make sure the requirements below are all met.

- All devices are properly installed.
- The AC circuit breaker is set to "OFF".
- The grounding cable is properly and reliably connected.
- The AC cable is properly and reliably connected.
- The AC circuit breaker is selected in compliance with the relevant requirements specified in this manual and applicable local standards.
- All safety signs and warning labels are firmly attached, intact and legible.

Commissioning Procedure

- 1 Turn on the main AC circuit breaker in the house.
- 2 Download the iSolarCloud App, and complete the grid-connection and network connection parameter settings by referring to " Operation Parameter Setting on iSolarCloud".
- 3 Check the LED indicator. The power generation system will start working if the indicator turns normal.

5.2 Operation Parameter Setting on iSolarCloud App

5.2.1 Background Information

About the iSolarCloud App

The country/region and grid type set for the microinverter must comply with the local gridconnection standards, so that the energy generated can be fed into the grid. The iSolar-Cloud App is a software for users to configure the on-grid operation parameters for the microinverter. You may download the App in the following two ways:

- Search for iSolarCloud in App Store, Google Play, or other application stores, and download the App by following the onscreen instructions.
- Scan the QR code below with a phone and download the App.



figure 5-1 iSolarCloud App



To fully utilize the features of the iSolarCloud App, please grant it access to your camera, location, and network when you first open the App.

The microinverter has its own Wi-Fi function too. Users can complete the network settings for the microinverter to access it to the home wireless network, so that it can upload its production and performance data to iSolarCloud over the Internet. The cloud data can be viewed on the iSolarCloud App or the Web system.

Operating Frequency and Power of Microinverter Wireless Network

RF operating frequency band 2.4G Wi-Fi: 2412-2472MHz (TX/RX) Maximum Output Power: 19.93dBm (e.i.r.p.)

Device Check

For ease of operation, the system is able to run a device check automatically to ensure the device can start on-grid operation normally. The check will be performed before the grid-connection on the connection of PV modules, microinverter operating status, country/region setting, etc. After the device check is completed, the microinverter can start up.

Device Synchronization

The system provides a function that allows the users to synchronize network settings across different devices, in case multiple microinverters are used. After completing the network settings for one device, users can synchronize the settings across other devices in one click, thus reducing the time spent in commissioning.

Grid-connection Operation Configuration

To sum up, before the on-grid operation of the microinverter, users need to complete network and grid-connection parameter settings on the iSolarCloud. They can also perform device check and synchronization, etc. The overall work flow is shown below.



figure 5-2 Grid-connection Operation Configuration Flow Chart

5.2.2 Device Configuration (Option 1)

Proceed to create a plant after logging in to iSolarCloud. During the process of adding a device, finalize device initialization and network settings. Then, complete creating the plant.

Step 1 Create an account. Open the iSolarCloud App, and tap **Register** on the login screen. Then, select the server and type of account and fill in the required information to create a Retail/In-staller account, as shown in the figure below.

			01 Select Please select	the relevant server for your area; if not avail
SUNGROW	01 Select your server Please select the relevant server for please select the international server	r your area; if not available, m	BASE P	imational server
Welcome to iSolarCloud		0	DROLT	
		2	02 Select	your server
Account	02 Select your account	t type		Retailer/Installer
Password by	Betailer/Instal Users who provid owners	ler le services for		
Remember Password Forgot Password				Owner Users who will own or already own
	Owner Users who will ow plants	m or already own		
LOGIN			Cancel	Select your server
Visitor Login Register				BASE Plant
2				Chinese Server
				European Server
Local Access WLAN Configuration	Next			International Server
				Australian Server
16:32	S C Distributor/Install	er Registration		
16:32 •••• 56 Select your account type 01 Select your server	Country/Region	er Registration		
16:32 ••••* 56 •• C Select your account type 01 Select your server Press safet the network over for your area; if not available, press safet the international server	Country/Region	er Registration		
16:32 •••• 5 •• C Select your account type 01 Select your server Phase select the relevant server for a validate. XXXXXX >	C Distributor/Install Country/Region XXXXX Password XXXXX	er Registration		
16:32 C Select your account type 01 Select your server Presented the formed are for your entry, if not available, XXXXX	Country/Region Countr	er Registration		
16:32 •••• 50 •• Select your account type 01 Select your server Presented the isle intervet on the for your and, if not available, XXXXXX >> 02 Select your account type	Country/Region Countr	er Registration		
16:32 ••••• 5 •• Coll Select your account type 01 Select your server Plase stack the returned for your and: If not available, XXXXXX > 02 Select your account type Coll Select your account type Coll Select your account type Coll Select your account type Coll Select your account type	Country/Region Country/Region XXXXX Password XXXXX Email XXXXX	er Registration		
16:32 ■ 15 ■ C Select your account type D1 Select your server Process which the when target for your and, if not available, better the international device XXXXX > D2 Select your account type Metaller/Installer Usars who provide services for orthom	Country/Region Country/Region Country/Region XXXXX *Password XXXXX *Email XXXXX *Email XXXXX XXXXX	er Registration		
16:32 •••• to a	Country/Region Country/Region	er Registration		
16:32	Country/Region Countr	er Registration		
16:32	Country/Region Countr	er Registration		
18:32 Select your account type O Select your server Select your account type Count of the retent device for your and, if not watched Count of the retent device for your account type Count of the retent of t	 Distributor/Install Country/Region XXXXX Password XXXXX Temail XXXXX Company Name XXXXX Code of Upper Level Instal XXXXX 	er Registration		
16:32 Select your account type Ol Select your acrow account type Country Country	Country/Region Country/Region XXXXX Password XXXXX *Email XXXXX Company Name XXXXX Company Name XXXXX Code of Upper Level Insta XXXXX	er Registration		

Step 2 Create a plant. Log in to your iSolarCloud App account. Following the onscreen instructions, tap **Create Plant**, fill in the general information about the plant, and then save, as shown in the figure below.

	More 2	More	
SUNGROW	1-115	Privacy Policy iSolarCloud	
Welcome to iSolarClou	Id	Sungrow Deutschland GmbH (also referred to as "Sungrow"; "we", "us" or "our") attaches great importance to your privacy. Therefore, we have worked out a privacy	N0
Account	•	policy that covers how we process your personal data as the data controller when	
Password	Paret	website www.isolarcloud.com (the "website") or via the iSolarCloud App (the	There is no plant, please create a plant first
Remember Pessword Forget Pe	ssword	*App": the website and the App together referred to as "IsolarCloud"). This privacy policy also tells you how you can exercise your data subject's rights (including the right to object to some of the data handling we carry out). More information about your rights and how you can exercise them is	Constant of the second s
Visitor Login	ter	set out in the "Your Rights and Choices" section below. In addition to this privacy policy, we have embedded data and privacy information in	6
Lacal Access WLAN Configur	ration	Local Access WLAN Configuration	Meditering Excited Support Account
		[
Create Plant	Cancel	中国形形 Prine 😑 👁 영本案 했 역례 (西) #	General Information
O1 Plant Information	>		* Plant Name
02 Device Setup	>	SUNGROWPOWER_TEST	SUNGROWPOWER_TEST
02 50000000		* Plant Type	* Plant Type
03 Tariff	>	Residential PV	Residential PV
		* PV Installation Power(kWp)	You will create a plant
		6	for the retailer/installer (shaka_leee@hotmail.com)
		* Detailed Address	
		China, Shang Hai Shi, Pu Dong Xi 💿	Cancel Confrm
		* City	Shang Hai
		Shang Hai	Sharg has
		Postal Code	Postal Code
			Save and Continue
		Save and Continue	

table 5-1	Parameters	Required for	Creating a Plant
	i urumetere	r toquirou ior	orouting a riturit

Parameter	Description
*Plant Name	Enter the plant name.
*Plant Type	Select the plant type.
*PV Installation	Enter the installed nower
Power (kWp)	
	The location of the plant, which can be set in the following two ways:
*Detailed Address	Manual setting: Enter the location of the plant in the input box.
	- Auto acquisition: Tap $igodot$ to get the current location automatically.

Parameter	Description
*City	The city where the plant is located.
Postal Code	The postal code of the place where the plant is located.
*Country/Region	The country/region where the plant is located.
*Time Zone	The time zone of the place where the plant is located.
Module Model	The model of the PV module actually used in the plant.
*Owner's Email	Enter the owner's small address
Address	Enter the owner's email address.
*Grid-connection	Set the grid-connection type for the plant
Туре	oer the glid-connection type for the plant.
Grid-connected	Shows the current date by default. You may tap 📛 to set the grid-
Date	connected date.
Plant Image	Upload an image of the plant.
Remark 1	Enter any remarks regarding the plant.

A

* Indicates that the field is required.

- Step 3 Add a device. After completing the plant information, the system will go to the "Create Plant" screen. Tap Device Setup to add the device. You can add the microinverter device to the plant manually, or by scanning its QR code.
 - Scan QR code: Scan the QR code on the device. After the device is recognized, tap **Agree** to connect your phone to the microinverter's hotspot, as shown in the figure below.



• Add manually: Tap , select **microinverter**, and enter the device S/N (which can be found on the device nameplate). Then, tap **Agree** to connect your phone to the microinverter's hotspot, as shown in the figure below.



A

- Connect only one mobile phone to the microinverter's hotspot at a time. Otherwise, it may lead to a conflict issue.
- To keep your account secure, after logging in to the system, change your password immediately and log in again using the new one.
- It is suggested to turn off auto network switching on the mobile phone so that it can stay connected to the microinverter's hotspot. Otherwise, the phone may switch to a stronger Wi-Fi signal automatically and its connection to the micro-inverter will be interrupted. Instructions are provided as follows, taking a Samsung phone as an example.
 - Open the Wi-Fi list on your phone, click ⁱ in the upper right corner, and select Intelligent Wi-Fi.



- Disable Turn Wi-Fi on/off automatically on the Intelligent Wi-Fi screen.

Step 4 Configure the network connection for the microinverter. Once connected to the microinverter's hotspot, the App goes to Device Setup. Establish a reliable network connection for the microinverter, by referring to the instructions below.





Step 5 To set up network connections for multiple microinverters, tap Confirm at the end of Step 4 to synchronize the current network settings across different devices. After a successful synchronization, users do not need to spend time in performing network settings for other devices.



Microinverters for which network settings are synchronized in this step will be added to the plant's device list simultaneously.

ACAUTION

Ħ

The S450S, S800S, S1000S and S1600S microinverters support the 2.4GHz band only. If the target network is not shown in the list of available home networks, check whether the 2.4GHz band is enabled for the router. You can go to the router configuration page and enable the 2.4GHz band in wireless settings.

Step 6 Set the country/region and grid type. Tap **Device Initialization** to go to "Initialize Protection Parameter", as shown in the figure below. You can select the country/region and the grid type based on the actual situation.



Step 7 (Optional) Device check. To make sure the microinverter can function properly, after the gridconnection parameter settings are completed, it is recommended to tap Confirm and run a device check. In case of nothing abnormal, you can start the device up. The microinverter can also start up if you choose to Skip the device check.



Step 8 (Optional) If the iHomeManager has been installed, add it to the plant and configure it accordingly. First, tap Add Device, click "T", and enter the device S/N. Then, connect to the iHomeManager's hotspot by following the onscreen instructions and configure its network connection, as demonstrated below.



Step 9 (Optional) After completing the network configuration for iHomeManager, click Device Initialization. Since iHomeManager is not connected to additional devices (such as charging stations) in this scenario, after entering Device Setup, directly click 'Stop Searching' in the top right corner. Then proceed to Device Initialization to set the initial parameters for iHomeManager (using default values).

Commissioning Sne XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX	2 C Device Setup Energy Management Mode Working Mode self-consumption	Image: Setup Image: Setup Networking Image: Setup Image: Setup Image: Setup	Commissioning
Inconternationager	Crid-connection Power Regulation Energy Purchase Control Method © > No Limit	Device List	Internet instruction in the second se
	Fleed-in Control Method © > To Limit Thride Party Rower Concertation Systems > Close	No Oats	Device initialization (meetic >
Continue	Next	Complete System Self-test	Continue

Step 10 Tariff setting. After the device has been added, the system will go to the "Create Plant" screen. Tap Tariff. You can set Feed-in Tariff and Consumption Tariff by following the onscreen instructions, and tap Save, as shown in the figure below.



Step 11 The plant that has been created will be shown on the "Monitoring" screen. You can tap a plant to check the detailed information about the plant and its devices, as shown in the figure below.



Step 12 Select the Device tab to view the devices in the plant. If you have synchronized the network settings for Micro Inverter 10 and Micro Inverter 11 in Step 5, it will be automatically added to the plant and displayed in the device list.



- - End

5.2.3 Device Configuration (Option 2)

Connect to the microinverter's hotspot and complete device initialization and network configuration for the microinverter via local access. After this, create a plant in iSolarCloud via remote access and add the microinverter to the plant.

Please refer to chapter **Microinverter Commissioning** in the iSolarCloud App User Manual (Overseas) for specific configuration operations.

5.2.4 Power Flow (with iHomeManager)

After connecting the iHomeManager to the system, you can monitor the power at the grid connection point. The power flow diagram allows you to visualize the power flow and monitor data on the grid side.

In the self-consumption scenario, when the load power demand exceeds the PV power output, additional power will be imported from the grid to meet the demand. In this case, the power flow diagram will indicate that the grid is supplying power to the load, as illustrated below.



In the self-consumption scenario, if the load power demand is less than the PV power output, the excess output will be fed into the grid. In this case, the power flow diagram will indicate that the PV system is supplying power to the grid, as illustrated below.



Below the power flow diagram, you can view information such as daily yield, real-time power and earnings (revenue).



6 Remote Monitoring

6.1 Firmware Update

Background Information

To further improve the device's performance, stability, and reliability, or to fix the known problems and vulnerabilities, SUNGROW may release new versions of firmware from time to time and notify users accordingly. Please update the firmware regularly to ensure the device's reliable operation.

Step 1 Open the iSolarCloud App, and enter the Account and Password to log in. Choose Monitoring to go to the plant list, and tap the plant name to go to the "Overview" tab. Then, tap the icon in the upper right corner and choose Firmware Update, as shown in the figure below.

More		Q ⊕	(3 ^{5-ata}	@ IDI 800 10:19	
	Creation Time \$	Filter 7	Overview Layout	Device	Faults
			Excessive Installed Power	er Difference	Firmware Update
SUNGROW Welcome to iSolarCloud	Commissioning Unfinished		Normal (S)		Plant Configuration
3333	Equivalent Hours: Daily Yield:			0	Smart IV Curve Diagnosis
13675645679	Daily Charge: Daily Discharge:		A la		Live Data
Page 6	- E 6212 701				Configuration Report
Remember Password Forget Password Login	Equivalent Hours: 0.59h Daily Yeld: 4.325kwh Daily Charge: 2.148kWh Daily Discharge: 2.77Wh		4 4 4 × 1		
Visitor Login			Real-time Power Inst	talled Power(kWp)	0.80
Local Access WLAN Configuration	Normal Equivalent Hours: 0.06h		Day Week Month \$ 19/Jan/2024	Vear Lifetir	Day Week Month Year Lifetin < 19/3an/2024 >
	Daily Charge: 0.004kWh		Energy Analysis	^	Energy Analysis



Step 2 Choose the Microinverter tab. Select the microinverter, and tap Firmware Update. Set the Single Device Update Timeout to 1h (user-definable), and tap Update to start an update, as shown in the figure below.



If the firmware update is not completed within the preset time, the system will indicate a firmware update timeout. In this case, start another update.

- - End

i

6.2 Viewing Layout

Choose the **Layout** tab at the top of the screen. Here you can check the yield data and arrangement of all PV modules attached to the microinverter.

- View device information
 - View PV module information: Tap a PV module in the layout to check its mounting angle and running data.

<	РСВ МІ	≡	<	PCB MI	≡
Energy Flow	Layout	Devices	Overview	Layout	Device
Physical Layout *	Daily Yield +	Communication	Physical Layout 👒	Daily Yield	Ŧ
١		0 ⊕	A20	02401250002-	1 🎯 🗡
			Data Update Time	: 09/03/2024 10:4	5
			Tilt Angle		o
			Azimuth An	gle	o
	● /~ 1,092kWh		Running data		
			PV1 Voltage	(V)	35.6
A8273626362-1 A8273		A8275626362-1	PVI Current	(A)	6.80
,	Û		PV1 Power(V	V)	243
52					
Device		Curve			

- View microinverter information: Tap a microinverter in the layout to check its energy production information.
 - Choose Information at the lower left of the screen to view more information about the microinverter, such as General Information, Fault, Curve, Settings, and Remote Signaling Status.
 - Choose Settings at the lower right for device parameter setting.



• Switch between layouts: Tap **v** at the upper left of the layout view to switch between **Physical Layout** and **Logical Layout**.



- Physical Layout: Shows the installation position and angle of the microinverter and PV modules.
- Logical Layout: Shows the connection between the microinverter and PV modules and their assignment status.
- View power yield data:

 - Tap ▼ at the upper right of the layout view. Choose Power and enable the live data function. You can then choose " = →Live Data" to check the live data of this plant.

< РСВ МІ	≡
Overview Layout	Device
Physical Layout 👻 Daily Yiel	d •
٢	€⊕
Yield	
Daily Yield	~
Monthly Yield	
Annual Yield	2
Total Yield	
ିତ Power	

• View device status and quantity: Tap 🖤 at the lower left of the layout view to check the status and number of microinverters.

<	PCB MI	≡
Energy Flow	Layout	Devices
Physical Layout -	Daily Yield -	Communication
٢		0
990Wh 3777777 A377767/05/03 43776	-7/~ 1,052kWh A5275626362 0Wh 6054621 A8273656562	8900/h 6/20/h 1 A877350(3521
52 All >		
Device		Curve



• View device: Tap **Device** at the lower left of the layout view to check the device S/N and assignment status.

• View curves: Tap **Curve** at the lower right of the layout view. You can choose a module, and tap **Curve** to check its energy production data displayed as a curve.



6.3 Checking Microinverter Status

Choose the **Device** tab on the top of the screen to check the devices in the plant and their status.

< x>	ίX	Ξ
Overview L	ayout Device	
Q Search		
Microinverter(1)		Filter 🏹
Offline		•••
Microinverter S/N: X	xxxxxxxxxxxx	
WLAN Signal Strength	Total Active Pc O W	wer
Micro Inverter2		
Microinverter S/N: >		
WLAN Signal Strength	Total Active Po O W	ower
		Ŧ

If a microinverter in the list remains offline for an extended period (excluding the situation that the microinverter goes offline at night, which is normal), follow the troubleshooting steps below.

- · Check that the home router network is functioning properly.
- Check that the microinverter is using the correct password to connect to the network.
- Determine if the signal is weak because the microinverter is too far from the router. If necessary, add a Wi-Fi extender between the microinverter and the router. See "2.3.1 Rooftop PV System" for detailed instructions.

6.4 Resetting iSolarCloud Account Password

Change the password required to log in to the iSolarCloud account.

15:22 all 46 🔳	3 16:29	al 9 🖸
More	Kentity Verification Kentity Verification Kentity Password Modify Password	ord
	Email New Password	
	XXXXX	
	Verification Code Successful Modification	ion, Please
SUNGROW	XXXXXX 556 re-login Automatic Jump Att	oer 2s
Averent to Eldear-Cloud	Net Withdraften code not not notewate with the to today on other matter to the star to the star to far the with start on the star to the start to far the with start on the start to the start to far the start to the start to the start to the start to the start to the to the start to the start to the start to the the start to the start to the start to the the start to the start to the start to the start the start to the start to the start to the the start to the start	4
Logit Vator Legn Register Lecal Access VILAIN Certigoriten	The trans has for the verification remail. J Xou may colds: Reader of change to another annal. It if the verification colds have rob been resched after several thous, please selece other verification methods. Modify	Re-login

Step 1 Tap Forgot Password on the login screen.

Step 2 Enter the account name, and tap Next.

You may not be able to reset your password if:

- The account is not associated with an email address.
- You have deleted your personal information, e.g., your email address.
 - You forgot your account name.

In case of any of the above problems, please contact Customer Service.

- Step 3 Enter your email address, and tap Send. Enter the verification code you have received, and tap Next.
- Step 4 Enter a new password. The password should be 8-character long at least and contain at least one letter and one number. Then, tap **Modify**.
- Step 5 After changing the password, tap **Re-login** to go back to the login screen. You can now log in with your new password.

- - End

1

6.5 Resetting Microinverter Password

Change the password required to access the microinverter device.



Step 1 Open the plant that has been created, and tap Device.

Step 2 Choose the target microinverter.

- Step 3 Tap Communication Device Parameter Setting in the scrolling menu bar, and choose Common Parameters.
- Step 4 Tap Reset Login Password.
- Step 5 Tap Enable.
- Step 6 Tap Apply Settings.

- - End

After the setting is completed, the password for this microinverter will be reset to the initial. Then, you can scan the QR code on the device enclosure and change the password again.

6.6 Turning on Microinverter Hotspot

1	< xxx	≓ 2	<	XXX	≡•	3	<	XXX1	≡
	Overview Layout	Device	Overview	Layout	Device		ngs Communic	ation Device Para	meter Setting R
	Excessive Installed Power Diff	erence	Q Search				Common Par	ameters	>
			All(1) Micro In	verter(1)	Filter 🖓			6]
	A Fault (S)	■ 18 °c	XXX1 @ Office 0						
		0	2 Micro Inv	/N: A02024021800	96				
	A second s		WLAN Signal Stree	ngth Total A	ctive Power				
		Typelli.							
	6 4 6 ¹⁰ 2	A la							
	Deal time Device	d DeventilitAte)							
		1.60			•				
	Day Week Month Yes	ar Lifetime							
	< <u>12/Mar/2024</u>	>							
_									
4	< Common Parameter	rs 5	< Com	mon Paramete	rs	6	< Com	imon Paramete	ers
	AP hotspot enable switch Set Value: Please Select	>	AP Hotspot Set Value: Please S	elect	>		AP Hotspot Set Value: Open		>
	Reset Login Password Set Value: Please Select	>	Reset Login Pa Set Value: Please S	ssword ielect	>		Reset Login P	assword	>
	Remote Device Restart		Remote Device	Restart			Pe	Settings	- 8
	Set Value: Please Select		Set Value: Please S	Select	>		Set Task Nan	ne	>
							2024-03 Paramet	26 19:40 Comme ers Settings	on
							Instructio	on Valid Period	- 8
							0.5h	1h	72h
			Cancel	AP Hotspot	Confirm		Declaration: F information is data based or information it	lease confirm that the accurate. The platform the last device attribu received.	settings 1 delivers te
							Cance	cor	lirm
				Close					
				Open					
	Apply Settings			2					
	Apply Settings								

In case the microinverter's hotspot goes off from timeout, you can turn it on again by following the steps below.

- Step 1 Open the plant that has been created, and choose Device.
- Step 2 Choose the target microinverter.
- Step 3 Tap Communication Device Parameter Setting in the scrolling menu bar, and choose Common Parameters.
- Step 4 Tap AP Hotspot, and select Open.
- Step 5 In the Settings window, set the "Instruction Valid Period" (the time for the hotspot to stay turned on) based on your actual needs, and tap Confirm.

- - End

7 Maintenance

7.1 Maintenance Notices

A DANGER

Risk of microinverter damage or personal injury due to incorrect service!

- Be sure to use specialized insulated tools when performing high-voltage operations.
- Before any service work, first switch off the grid-side AC circuit breaker and check the microinverter status.
- After the microinverter is powered off for 10 minutes, measure the voltage and current with professional instrument. Only when there is no voltage nor current can operators who wear protective equipment operate and maintain the microinverter.
- Even if the microinverter is shut down, it may still be hot and cause burns. Wear protective gloves before operating the microinverter after it cools down.
- When maintaining the product, it is strictly prohibited to open the product if there is an odor or smoke or if the product appearance is abnormal. If there is no odor, smoke, or obvious abnormal appearance, repair or restart the micro-inverter according to the alarm corrective measures. Avoid standing directly in front of the microinverter during maintenance.

To prevent misuse or accidents caused by unrelated personnel: Post prominent warning signs or demarcate safety warning areas around the microinverter to prevent accidents caused by misuse.

NOTICE

- Restart the microinverter only after removing the fault that impairs safety performance.
- As the microinverter contains no component parts that can be maintained, never open the enclosure, or replace any internal components.
- Store the accessories properly after installation for use in future maintenance.
- To avoid the risk of electric shock, do not perform any other maintenance operations beyond those described in this manual. If necessary, contact your distributor first. If the problem persists, contact SUNGROW. Otherwise, the losses caused is not covered by the warranty.

NOTICE

Touching the PCB or other static sensitive components may cause damage to the device.

- Do not touch the circuit board unnecessarily.
- Observe the regulations to protect against electrostatic and wear an anti-static wrist strap.

7.2 Routine Maintenance

Item	Method	Period			
	Check the temperature and dust of the	6 months to a year			
Device clean	device. Clean the device enclosure if	(depending on the dust con-			
	necessary.	tents in air)			
	Check whether all cable are firmly con-	6 months after commissioning and then once or twice a year			
Floatrical	nected in place.				
	Check whether there is damage to the				
connection	cables, especially the surface in con-				
	tact with metal.				
	Visual check for any damage or defor-				
	mation of the microinverter.				
	Check any abnormal noise during the				
General status	operation.	Every 6 months			
of the system	Check each operation parameter.				
	Be sure that nothing covers the heat				
	sink of the device.				

7.3 Microinverter Removal and Replacement

7.3.1 Microinverter Removal and Replacement

Step 1 Turn off the main AC circuit breaker in the house.





Step 3 Remove the DC connector, use a connector wrench to loosen the locking parts.





Connector wrench prepared by users.

Step 4 Remove the grounding cable.

Step 5 Unscrew the fixing screws using a proper tool.

- - End

7.3.2 Microinverter Replacement on iSolarCloud App

Step 1 After the device has been replaced on site, open the iSolarCloud App, and complete the settings in **Device Initialization** and **Network** for the new device by referring to "5.2.2 Device Configuration (Option 1)".

11 5G 🔳

Modify

Device Replacement

Delete

Cancel

Step 2 Tap the plant, and choose **Device**. Then, tap and choose **Device Replacement** to add the new microinverter to the plant. The steps are shown below. For how to add a new device, see "5.2.2 Device Configuration (Option 1)".



- - End

7.4 System Decommissioning

7.4.1 Disconnecting the Microinverter

Danger of burns!

Even after the microinverter has been stopped, it may still be hot and cause burns. Wait about 30 min for the microinverter to cool down, and then perform operations on it wearing protective gloves.

For maintenance or other service work, the microinverter must be switched off.

Proceed as follows to disconnect the microinverter from the AC power sources. Lethal voltages or damage to the microinverter will follow if otherwise.

Step 1 Switch off the external AC circuit breaker and prevent it from inadvertent switching on.

Step 2 Wait about 10 minutes until the capacitors inside the microinverter completely discharge.

- - End

7.4.2 Dismantling the Microinverter

Risk of burn injuries and electric shock!

After the microinverter is powered off for 10 minutes, measure the voltage and current using specialized instruments. Operation and maintenance must only be performed by qualified personnel who wear protective equipment after confirming that no voltage or current is present.

- Before dismantling the microinverter, disconnect it from AC power sources.
- Put the microinverter into its original packaging and seal it using adhesive tape. If the original packaging is not available, select an appropriate cardboard box based on the microinverter's weight and size, put the microinverter into the box, and seal it properly.

Step 1 Refer to "4.3 Mounting and Wiring ", to dismantle the microinverter in reverse steps.

Step 2 If necessary, remove the wall-mounting bracket from the wall.

Step 3 If the microinverter will be used again in the future, please store it properly.

- - End

7.4.3 Disposal of Microinverter

Users take the responsibility for the disposal of the microinverter.
WARNING

Please dispose of the microinverter in compliance with the applicable local regulations and standards to avoid property damage or casualties.

NOTICE

Some parts or components of the microinverter may contaminate the environment. Therefore, please dispose of the microinverter or its parts or components according to the applicable regulations for electronic waste disposal in the place where the microinverter is located.



8 Troubleshooting and Maintenance

8.1 Indicator Status and Troubleshooting

LED Indicator

LED Description Color **LED Status** Indicator Steady on On-grid operation Blue Blinking Standby or starting up Fault (e.g., microinverter fault, update Steady on failed) Red Blinking Update in progress Grey Off Power off

If there is a fault in the microinverter, the fault information will be shown on the iSolarCloud App. Fault codes and corresponding troubleshooting methods are all listed in the table below, which are intended for all PV inverter products. Some of these faults may not occur in the product you have purchased. In case of a fault in the inverter, you can check its detailed information by fault code on the iSolarCloud App.

Fault Code	Fault Name	Troubleshooting Methods			
2	Grid over- voltage	Generally, the inverter will reconnect to the grid once the grid returns to normal. If this fault occurs repeatedly:			
		1. Measure the actual grid voltage. Contact your local power company for help if the grid voltage is higher than the set value;			
		2. If the fault does not arise for the aforementioned rea- son and still cannot be resolved, please contact SUN- GROW Customer Service.			
		Generally, the inverter will reconnect to the grid once the grid returns to normal. If this fault occurs repeatedly:			
3	Grid transi- ent overvoltage	 Measure the actual grid voltage. Contact your local power company for help if the grid voltage is higher than the set value; 			
		2. If the fault does not arise for the aforementioned rea- son and still cannot be resolved, please contact SUN- GROW Customer Service.			

Fault Code	Fault Name	Troubleshooting Methods		
4	Grid under- voltage	Generally, the inverter will reconnect to the grid once the grid returns to normal. If this fault occurs repeatedly:		
5	Grid voltage Iow	 Measure the actual grid voltage. Contact your local power company for help if the grid voltage is lower than the set value; Check whether the AC cable connection is secure; If the fault does not arise for the aforementioned rea- son and still cannot be resolved, please contact SUN- GROW Customer Service. 		
7,16,38,61, 85,104,105,		Generally, the inverter will reconnect to the grid once the grid returns to normal. If this fault occurs repeatedly:		
107,262,300, 306,307,312, 313,314,315, 316,324,330, 327,1326,13- 27 1352–1357, 1360–1370, 1372–1378	System fault	 Measure the actual grid voltage and frequency. Contact your local power company for help if the grid voltage and frequency fluctuation are out of the operating range required by the device; The grid voltage DC component may be out of the operating range required by the device. In this case, contact your local power company for help; Check the specifications of the PV modules and see if their voltage data exceeds the operating range required by the device; Check if there is any obstruction by foreign objects to the device enclosure. If so, remove them; Turn off the AC switch inside the power distribution box. Then, re-connect the cables of PV modules, restart the device, and wait for it to return to normal; If the fault does not arise for the aforementioned reason and still cannot be resolved, please contact SUN-GROW Customer Service. 		
8	Grid over- frequency	 Generally, the inverter will reconnect to the grid once the grid returns to normal. If this fault occurs repeatedly: 1. Measure the actual grid voltage and frequency. Contact your local power company for help if the grid parameter exceeds the set range; 2. If the fault does not arise for the aforementioned reason and still cannot be resolved, please contact SUN-GROW Customer Service. 		

Fault Code	Fault Name	Troubleshooting Methods
		Generally, the inverter will reconnect to the grid once the
		grid returns to normal. If this fault occurs repeatedly:
		1. Measure the actual grid voltage and frequency. Con-
0	Grid under-	tact your local power company for help if the grid parame-
5	frequency	ter is below the set range;
		2. If the fault does not arise for the aforementioned rea-
		son and still cannot be resolved, please contact SUN-
		GROW Customer Service.
		Generally, the inverter will reconnect to the grid automati-
		cally once the grid returns to normal. If this fault occurs
	Grid outage	repeatedly:
		1. Check if the grid voltage is lower than the operating
		range required by the device. If so, contact your local
10		power company for help;
10		2. Check whether the AC cable connection is secure;
		3. Check whether the AC cable is connected in correct
		polarity;
		4. If the fault does not arise for the aforementioned rea-
		son and still cannot be resolved, please contact SUN-
		GROW Customer Service.
		Generally, the inverter will reconnect to the grid once the
		grid returns to normal. If the fault occurs repeatedly:
13		1. Measure the actual grid frequency and grid voltage.
	Grid	Contact your local power company for help if the grid pa-
	abnormal	rameter exceeds the set range;
		2. If the fault does not arise for the aforementioned rea-
		son and still cannot be resolved, please contact SUN-
		GROW Customer Service.

Fault Code	Fault Name	Troubleshooting Methods		
14	10-minute grid over- voltage	 Generally, the inverter will reconnect to the grid once the grid returns to normal. If this fault occurs repeatedly: 1. Measure the actual grid voltage. Contact your local power company for help if the grid voltage exceeds the set range; 2. Open the iSolarCloud App and check the setting of the 10-minute over-voltage protection function. With the permission of the local power system operator, you can increase the 10-minute over-voltage protection threshold; 3. If the fault does not arise for the aforementioned reason and still cannot be resolved, please contact SUN-GROW Customer Service. 		
15	Grid voltage high	 Generally, the inverter will reconnect to the grid once the grid returns to normal. If this fault occurs repeatedly: 1. Measure the actual grid voltage. Contact your local power company for help if the grid voltage is higher than the set value. 2. If the fault does not arise for the aforementioned reason and still cannot be resolved, please contact SUN-GROW Customer Service. 		
17	Grid voltage unbalance	 Generally, the inverter will reconnect to the grid automatically once the grid returns to normal. If this fault occurs repeatedly: 1. If the grid voltage unbalance is out of the operating range required by the inverter, contact your local power company for help; 2. If the fault does not arise for the aforementioned reason and still cannot be resolved, please contact SUN-GROW Customer Service. 		
26, 28, 29, 208, 212, 215	PV reserve connection fault	 Check the wiring of the positive and negative cables of the PV modules (including extension cables): 1. If the phase sequence is wrong, turn off the AC switch in the power distribution box first. Then, when the light is weak, or after covering the PV module completely with a shelter, reconnect the cables of the PV module (including extension cable); 2. If the fault does not arise for the aforementioned reason and still cannot be resolved, please contact SUN-GROW Customer Service. 		

Fault Code	Fault Name	Troubleshooting Methods		
		Generally, the inverter will reconnect to the grid automati-		
		cally once the ambient temperature returns to normal. If		
37	A mala i a matata ma	this fault occurs repeatedly:		
	perature too	1. Check if the ambient temperature exceeds the operat-		
		ing range required by the device;		
	ingii	2. If the fault does not arise for the aforementioned rea-		
		son and still cannot be resolved, please contact SUN-		
		GROW Customer Service.		
		Generally, the device will reconnect to the grid automati-		
		cally after the fault is removed. If this fault occurs		
		repeatedly:		
	Low system insulation resistance	1. Check whether the preset ISO resistance protection		
		value of the inverter is too high and whether it complies		
		with the local regulations;		
39		2. Check if the resistance of the PV module is too low on		
		rainy or cloudy days, or in the morning or evening. Meas-		
		ure the PV module negative- and positive-to-ground insu-		
		lation resistance and see if they are too low;		
		3. If the fault does not arise for the aforementioned rea-		
		son and still cannot be resolved, please contact SUN-		
		GROW Customer Service.		
		Generally, the inverter will reconnect to the grid automati-		
		cally once the ambient temperature returns to normal. If		
	A 1 · · · ·	this fault occurs repeatedly:		
40	Ambient tem- perature too low	1. Check if the ambient temperature is below the operat-		
43		ing range required by the device;		
		2. If the fault does not arise for the aforementioned rea-		
		son and still cannot be resolved, please contact SUN-		
		GROW Customer Service.		

Fault Code	Fault Name	Troubleshooting Methods		
74, 78, 79,	System alarm	Generally, the alarm will not affect the device's operation. If this alarm occurs repeatedly:		
		1. Turn off the AC switch inside the power distribution box, and check if the cables of the PV modules are connected firmly;		
80, 81, 220, 221, 505,		2. Check if there are short circuits or open circuits in the cables of PV modules;		
500		3. Re-connect the cables of PV modules, restart the de- vice, and wait for the device to return to normal;		
		4. If the alarm does not arise for the reasons above, please contact SUNGROW Customer Service.		
1320, 1321, 1322, 1323, 1324, 1325	PV over-cur- rent fault	Generally, the device will reconnect to the grid automati- cally after the fault is removed. If this fault occurs repeatedly: 1. Check the specifications of the PV modules and see if their current is out of the operating range required by the device;		
		2. If the fault does not arise for the reasons above, please contact SUNGROW Customer Service.		
1500, 1501, 1502, 1503, 1504, 1505	PV over-volt- age fault	Generally, the device will reconnect to the grid automati- cally after the fault is removed. If this fault occurs repeatedly:		
		 Check the specifications of the PV module and see if their voltage data is out of the operating range required by the device; 		
		2. If the fault does not arise for the reasons above, please contact SUNGROW Customer Service.		



Contact your dealer if you have already tried the "Troubleshooting Methods" listed in the table above but the problem is still not resolved. In case the dealer cannot help you solve the problem, please contact SUNGROW.

9 Appendix

9.1 Technical Data

Type designation	S450S	S800S	S1000S	S1600S
Input (DC)				
Recommended				
PV module	375 W -	- 570 W	375 W - 650 W	375 W - 570 W
power range				
Max. PV input			20. V (
voltage		C	50 V	
Min. PV input				
voltage / Startup		16 V	//22 V	
input voltage				
MPPT voltage		16 \	(60.)/	
range		10 V	- 60 V	
No. of independ-				
ent MPP	1		2	4
trackers				
Max. PV input	16 4 * 1 16 4 * 2		16 A * 4	
current				1071
Max. DC short-	20 A * 1 20 A * 2			20 A * 4
circuit current	-			
Grid Type		Singl	e phase	
Rated AC output	450 W	800 W	1000 W	1600 W
power				
Max. AC output	450 VA	800 VA	1000 VA	1600 VA
apparent power	100 111	000 // (
Max. AC output	2.1 A	3.6 A	4.6 A	7.3 A
current	2.17 J.OA			
Rated AC output				
current (at 230	2.0 A	3.5 A	4.4 A	7.0 A
V)				
Rated AC	220 V / 230 V / 240 V			
voltage				

Type designation	S450S	S800S	S1000S	S1600S	
range		154 V	- 277 V		
Rated arid					
frequency		50 Hz	/ 60 Hz		
Grid frequency		15 Hz	- 55 Hz		
range		45 Hz	- 55 Hz		
Harmonic (THD)		5 % (at r	- 03 FIZ		
Dewer fector et		< 3 % (at la	ated power)		
rated power / Ad					
iustable power		> 0.99 / 0.8 lead	ling - 0.8 lagging		
factor					
Maximum units					
per branch (2.5	10	6	5	3	
mm2)					
Efficiency					
Max. efficiency		96.	2 %		
European					
efficiency	95.4 %				
Protection & funct	ion				
Grid monitoring	Yes				
Leakage current	Ves				
protection		I	63		
PV module	Ves				
monitoring	res				
Rapid shutdown	Yes				
Surge protection	AC type II				
General data					
Dimensions (W	238 mm * 168	265 mm * 22	6 mm * 42 mm	361 mm * 271	
*H*D)	mm * 42 mm	200 1111 22		mm * 55 mm	
Weight	2.5 kg	3.	5 kg	7.5 kg	
Mounting	Bracket Mountod				
method	DIACKEL MOUITIEU				
Topology		High Frequenc	y Transformers		
Degree of	ID67				
protection	11 07				
Night power	< 50 m\//				
consumption					

Type designation	S450S	S800S	S1000S	S1600S	
Operating ambi-					
ent temperature		-40 °C	- 65 °C		
range					
Allowable rela-					
tive humidity		100) %		
range					
Cooling method	Natural cooling				
Max. operating		0000			
altitude		2000 m			
Display		LED			
Communication		WLAN			
DC connection					
type		Staubli MC4			
AC connection					
type		Flug and play connector			

* Voltage could vary within the supporting range according to the application scenario.

**Limits may vary. Refer to local requirements to define the number of microinverters per branch in your area.

9.2 Quality Assurance

When product faults occur during the warranty period, SUNGROW will provide free service or replace the product with a new one.

Evidence

During the warranty period, the customer shall provide the product purchase invoice and date. In addition, the trademark on the product shall be undamaged and legible. Otherwise, SUNGROW has the right to refuse to honor the quality guarantee. The warranty period is 15 years and the software service period is 15 years.

Conditions

- After replacement, unqualified products shall be processed by SUNGROW.
- The customer shall give SUNGROW a reasonable period to repair the faulty device.

Exclusion of Liability

In the following circumstances, SUNGROW has the right to refuse to honor the quality guarantee:

- The free warranty period for the whole machine/components has expired.
- The device is damaged during transport.

- The device is incorrectly installed, refitted, or used.
- The device operates in harsh conditions beyond those described in this manual.
- The fault or damage is caused by installation, repairs, modification, or disassembly performed by a service provider or personnel not from SUNGROW.
- The fault or damage is caused by the use of non-standard or non-SUNGROW components or software.
- The installation and use range are beyond stipulations of relevant international standards.
- The damage is caused by unexpected natural factors.

For faulty products in any of above cases, if the customer requests maintenance, paid maintenance service may be provided based on the judgment of SUNGROW.

9.3 Contact Information

In case of questions about this product, please contact us. We need the following information to provide you the best assistance:

- Model of the device
- · Serial number of the device
- Fault code/name
- Brief description of the problem

For detailed contact information, please visit: https://en.SUNGROWpower.com/contactUS

